
PATTERN OF MARRIAGES AND SYSTEMIC MANIPULATION — THE 

TEACHING EXAMPLE OF TESHIA BLACK 

A. Introduction: How One Woman Turned the System Into a Weapon 

For more than a decade, Teshia Black has used marriage not as a bond, but as a means of 

leverage. 

Each new relationship became another opportunity to craft a new story, a new accusation, 

and a new way to profit from the legal machinery of Cocke County. 

Since July 6 2024, her strategy has reached its most dangerous form—transforming 

falsehoods into arrests, transforming courts into accomplices, and transforming justice 

itself into an instrument of personal gain. 

 

B. The Pattern Hidden in Plain Sight 

Six marriages. Six divorces. Six different narratives of victimhood—each tailored to the 

courtroom she happened to be standing in. 

Husband Allegation Outcome Pattern 

#1 & #2 
  

Claimed abuse, remarried same man, won 
2nd divorce on “Inhumane Treatment.” 
  

Two divorces, 
same partner. 
  

Contradictory conduct, 
recycled allegation. 
  

#3  

100% Disabled Veteran—“developed multiple 
personalities.” 
  

Divorce. 
  

Weaponized mental-health 
narrative. 
  

#4 Attorney who had represented her. Divorce. Marriage for legal leverage. 

#5 Claimed infidelity; ordered to pay alimony. Divorce. 

Shifted story to preserve  
sympathy. 
 
 
 
  

#6 (Jeremy 
Black, 
Plaintiff) 

Claimed helpless victim; used false filings to 
trigger arrests and seize benefits. 

Divorce 
pending. 

Same script, now fortified by 
official protection. 

 

 



Every accusation was different. The result was always the same: Teshia wins, the spouse 

loses, and the court records another “victim” judgment in her favor. 

 

C. Exploiting the Machinery of Cocke County 

1. Tailoring the Allegation to the Audience – Abuse for sympathy, infidelity for moral 

authority, mental illness for pity. 

2. Aligning with Insiders – Marrying an attorney, cultivating prosecutors, and securing 

favor from local judges created a feedback loop of credibility. 

3. Weaponizing Procedure – When evidence contradicted her, officials “lost” 

records, denied access, or refused investigation. 

4. Financial Extraction – With each case came possession of homes, vehicles, and 

federal benefits—never earned, always acquired by legal default. 

 

D. How the Scheme Escalated After July 6 2024 

The evening of July 5 2024, Teshia was told the marriage was over. 

By 10 a.m. the next day, her husband—a 100 percent disabled combat-medic veteran—

was in jail. 

The arrest rested on perjured statements later proven false by body-cam and transcript 

evidence. 

Within days, she lived rent-free in an $800,000 home, drove a $100,000 Yukon Denali, 

and began collecting federal dependent benefits she had redirected with falsified 

custody paperwork. 

When the school counselor reported child abuse on March 18 2025, she moved the 

children to a private counselor “recommended” by her attorney Crystal Jesse—a 

counselor known for soft-pedaling abuse. The result was predictable: the reports stopped, 

and oversight vanished. 

 

E. The Protective Wall Around Her 

None of it could have lasted without help. 



• DA Jimmy Dunn and ADA Nikolas Kear ignored written notices of benefit theft and 

perjury. 

• Sheriff C.J. Ball and Lt. Zach Magourik blocked evidence requests and refused 

investigation. 

• Judges Mark Strange and Carter S. Moore enforced tainted orders while 

suppressing discovery. 

This network of inaction and selective prosecution turned her private misconduct into a 

state-sanctioned fraud—a textbook case of official oppression under T.C.A. § 39-16-403 

and 18 U.S.C. §§ 241–242. 

 

F. The Haul of Illicit Benefits 

Category Approx. Value Method 

Residence 
 

≈ $800 000 home 
 

Retained through false filings 
 

Vehicle 
 

≈ $100 000 Yukon Denali 
 

Claimed as marital property after fabricated arrest 
 

 

Federal Benefits 

 
 

 

Ongoing SS & VA payments 

 
 

 

Redirected via perjured custody orders 

 
 

Health Coverage 
 

100 % insurance continuing 

 
 

Misrepresentation of marital status 

 
 

Legal Advantage Unquestioned credibility Reinforced by DA and court support 

 

G. Statutory Violations Embedded in the Pattern 

• False Reports / Perjury: T.C.A. §§ 39-16-502, 703; 18 U.S.C. § 1621 

• Benefit Fraud: 42 U.S.C. § 408(a)(5); 38 U.S.C. §§ 6101–6108; 18 U.S.C. § 641 

• Obstruction / Brady Giglio: 18 U.S.C. §§ 1503, 1512, 1519 

• Retaliation / Witness Tampering: 18 U.S.C. § 1513; T.C.A. § 39-16-510 

• Official Oppression / Conspiracy: 18 U.S.C. §§ 241–242; T.C.A. § 39-16-403 

 

 



H. The Human Cost 

Fifteen months without a father’s voice. 

Four children cut off from their only consistent parent. 

Federal benefits diverted, counseling manipulated, truth buried under procedure. 

While officials looked the other way, an entire family was dismantled—piece by piece—

under the pretense of “justice.” 

 

I. Conclusion: Why This Matters 

This is more than one family’s tragedy; it is a case study in how personal deceit becomes 

public corruption when institutions choose loyalty over law. 

Teshia Black’s marriages were not coincidences—they were campaigns. 

Her success depended on a courthouse that refused to question her, a sheriff’s office that 

refused to act, and prosecutors who forgot who the victims really are. 

If this pattern can thrive in Cocke County, it can thrive anywhere. 

Transparency and accountability are not optional—they are the only antidote. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Marriage History & Allegations 

1. Husband #1 (Married Twice) 

o Allegation: Claimed he beat her. 

o Contradiction: She remarried him after the first divorce despite the alleged 

abuse. 

o Outcome: Second divorce was granted to her on grounds of Inhumane 

Treatment. 

o Pattern: Contradictory behavior (remarrying an alleged abuser), using abuse 

claims to secure divorce grounds. 

2. Husband #2 (100% Disabled Veteran) 

o Allegation: Claimed he “developed multiple personalities.” 

o Outcome: Divorce. 

o Pattern: Used mental health accusations to undermine a disabled veteran, 

mirroring her current tactics of weaponizing health claims. 

3. Husband #3 (Attorney) 

o Allegation: He previously represented her in previous divorce. 

o Outcome: Divorce. 

o Pattern: Marriage appeared to provide her with legal leverage, showing 

strategic use of relationships in court disputes. 

4. Husband #4 

o Allegation: Claimed he cheated on her. 

o Outcome: Divorce, with Teshia ordered to pay alimony. 

o Pattern: Shifted the victim narrative to infidelity after financial loss, 

consistent with portraying herself as powerless despite contradictory 

outcomes. 

5. Husband #5 (Jeremy Black – Plaintiff) 

o Allegation: Claimed to be a helpless, scared victim in criminal and divorce 

proceedings. 

o Contradictions: 



 False and perjured testimony documented in court records. 

 Suppressed child abuse disclosures. 

 Fraudulent redirection of Social Security and VA dependent benefits. 

o Outcome: Divorce pending. 

o Pattern: Same playbook of false victimhood and legal weaponization applied 

in current litigation. 

 

Context on Plaintiff 

• At the time of meeting Teshia, Plaintiff Jeremy Black was completing his own 

divorce. 

• That divorce was won on grounds of Inhumane Treatment and Marital Misconduct. 

• This provides context for how Teshia later mirrored similar allegations for her own 

advantage. 

 

Summary of Pattern 

• Repetition: Six marriages, six divorces, each ending with Teshia portraying herself 

as the victim. 

• Contradiction: Allegations vary widely — abuse, mental illness, infidelity, 

helplessness — depending on which narrative benefits her most. 

• Manipulation: Use of marital relationships to gain legal, financial, or strategic 

advantages. 

• Relevance: This pattern directly impacts her credibility in both criminal and divorce 

proceedings, and supports the broader civil rights and fraud claims pending in 

federal court. 

 



Summary of Criminal Acts and 

Concealment – Teshia Black 

A. False Reports and Perjury (T.C.A. §§ 39-16-502, 39-16-703; 18 U.S.C. § 

1621) 

• Dates: July 6, 2024 – August 14, 2025 

• Conduct: 

o Filed false police statements leading to your unlawful arrest. 

o Changed written statements under the guidance of Deputy Josh Smith to 

omit that Jeremy restrained Daniel Black after witness said it did not happen 

and it was a blur after Teshia intervened (child abuse). 

o Repeatedly lied under oath in hearings (Jan. 22, 2025 and Aug. 14, 2025) 

while protected by Jadge Mark Strange ADA Kear and DA Dunn. 

• Shielding Officials: 

o Judge Mark Strange, DA Dunn and ADA Kear refused to prosecute her for 

perjury despite audio and court transcripts proving the lies. 

o Judges Moore and Strange ignored clear inconsistencies and continued 

enforcing her false claims. 

 

B. Child Abuse and Suppression of Reporting (T.C.A. § 37-1-403; 18 U.S.C. § 

241 – conspiracy against rights) 

• Conduct: 

o Suppressed children’s disclosures to school counselor and CPS, moving 

them to a private counselor known for minimizing abuse. 

• Shielding Officials: 



o DA’s office and CCSO blocked formal complaints, refused investigation, 

and denied bodycam access. 

o Judges Strange and Moore refused to order release of exculpatory CPS 

records or bodycam footage. 

 

C. Social Security & VA Benefits Fraud (42 U.S.C. § 408(a)(5); 38 U.S.C. §§ 

6101–6108) 

• Conduct: 

o Falsified dependency status and redirected children’s Social Security 

dependent benefits after manipulating court orders. 

o Interfered with Plaintiff’s VA disability benefits through fraudulent filings and 

misleading representations of custody status. 

• Shielding Officials: 

o Judge Strange’s refusal to correct fraudulent orders allowed ongoing misuse 

of federal funds. 

o DA Dunn and ADA Kear ignored direct written notice of benefit theft and 

continued to back her narrative. 

 

D. Obstruction of Justice and Suppression of Exculpatory Evidence (18 

U.S.C. §§ 1503, 1505, 1512, 1519; Brady/Giglio violations) 

• Conduct: 

o CCSO, DA’s office, and court personnel withheld bodycam and dashcam 

footage, witness statements, and CPS reports. 

o Officials repeatedly misled you about existence of evidence (Keith Haas 

reported stonewalling). 



• Shielding Officials: 

o Sheriff Ball, Lt. Magourik, and Deputy Smith coordinated refusals under 

instruction from DA’s office. 

o Judges Moore and Strange allowed the state to proceed despite the absence 

of discovery, violating due process. 

 

E. Retaliation and Witness Intimidation (18 U.S.C. § 1513; T.C.A. § 39-16-510) 

• Conduct: 

o After you filed federal suit (2:25-cv-00002), officials retaliated by imposing an 

ankle monitor on Jan. 22, 2025, at Teshia’s request. 

o Teshia, ADA Kear, and Judge Strange collaborated to add witnesses 

(Tammy, Diane, Natasha) to a bond order originally tied to her protection 

order. 

• Shielding Officials: 

o Judge Mark Strange, DA Dunn and Kear facilitated retaliatory actions to 

punish your protected federal filing. 

 

F. Conspiracy Under Color of Law (18 U.S.C. §§ 241, 242; T.C.A. § 39-16-403 – 

Official Oppression) 

• Conduct: 

o Teshia’s false statements triggered arrests and prosecutions designed to 

silence you and obstruct evidence exposure. 

o Coordinated misconduct between CCSO, DA’s office, and judges shows 

organized protection of a civilian informant/beneficiary. 

• Pattern Evidence: 



o Repeated denials of public records requests (Exhibits QQQQ and RR). 

o Coordinated refusal of service by DA Dunn and ADA Kear (Certified Mail 

logs). 

o Misuse of judicial power to reinforce fraudulent orders. 

 

G. Current Status – Ongoing Harm 

• Financial: Ongoing theft of federal benefits through misuse of custody orders. 

• Constitutional: Continued deprivation of parental access, due process, and equal 

protection under the 1st, 5th, and 14th Amendments. 

• Psychological: Manipulation of children through isolation, counselor suppression, 

and parental alienation tactics. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



This exhibit summarizes a documented pattern of criminal acts and concealment by 

Defendant Teshia Black, enabled or ignored by officials within the Cocke County Sheriff’s 

Office (CCSO), District Attorney Jimmy Dunn, Assistant District Attorney Nikolas Kear, 

Sheriff C.J. Ball, and Judges Mark Strange and Carter S. Moore. The actions outlined below 

demonstrate coordinated obstruction, selective prosecution, and retaliation under color of 

law. 

 

A. False Reports and Perjury 

Statutes Violated: T.C.A. §§ 39-16-502, 39-16-703; 18 U.S.C. § 1621 

Conduct: Filed false police statements on July 6 and September 5, 2024 leading to 

unlawful arrest; altered written statement at Deputy Josh Smith’s direction to omit Jeremy 

restraining Daniel Black; gave perjured testimony (Jan 22 and Aug 14 2025). 

Shielding Officials: DA Dunn and ADA Kear refused prosecution despite audio/transcripts 

proving perjury; Judges Moore and Strange disregarded contradictions. 

Legal Authority: Perjury and false reports under both Tennessee and federal law 

constitute obstruction of justice and deprivation of due process when knowingly ignored by 

officials. 

 

B. Child Abuse and Suppression of Reporting 

Statutes Violated: T.C.A. § 37-1-403; 18 U.S.C. § 241 

Conduct: suppressed child-abuse disclosures by transferring children from school 

counselor to a private counselor known to minimize reports. 



Shielding Officials: DA’s office and CCSO blocked complaints, denied body-cam 

evidence, and ignored CPS disclosures. 

Legal Authority: Failure to report or investigate child abuse violates mandatory-reporting 

duties and constitutes conspiracy against civil rights. 

 

C. Social Security and VA Benefits Fraud 

Statutes Violated: 42 U.S.C. § 408(a)(5); 38 U.S.C. §§ 6101–6108 

Conduct: Falsified dependency status to redirect Social Security dependent benefits and 

interfere with Plaintiff’s VA disability benefits through fraudulent court orders. 

Shielding Officials: Judge Strange’s refusal to correct fraudulent orders enabled 

continued misuse; 

Legal Authority: Misuse of federal benefits constitutes federal fraud and theft of 

government property. 

 

D. Obstruction of Justice and Suppression of Exculpatory Evidence 

Statutes Violated: 18 U.S.C. §§ 1503, 1505, 1512, 1519; Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 

(1963); Giglio v. United States, 405 U.S. 150 (1972) 

Conduct: CCSO, DA’s office, and court staff withheld body-cam footage, dash-cam data, 

witness statements, and CPS records; officials misled Plaintiff and defense counsel about 

existence of evidence. 



Shielding Officials: Sheriff Ball, Lt. Magourik, and Deputy Smith coordinated refusals 

under DA instruction; Judges Moore and Strange allowed prosecution to continue without 

discovery. 

Legal Authority: Suppression of exculpatory evidence violates the Due Process Clause of 

the Fourteenth Amendment. 

 

E. Retaliation and Witness Intimidation 

Statutes Violated: 18 U.S.C. § 1513; T.C.A. § 39-16-510 

Conduct: After Plaintiff filed his federal complaint (2:25-cv-00002), officials retaliated by 

imposing an ankle monitor (Jan 22 2025) at Teshia Black’s request; she, ADA Kear, and 

Judge Strange expanded a bond order to add witnesses Tammy Webb, Diane Parker, and 

Natasha Rick. 

Shielding Officials: DA Dunn and Kear facilitated retaliation in violation of Plaintiff’s First 

Amendment right to petition. 

Legal Authority: Retaliating for protected legal activity violates federal law and constitutes 

obstruction of justice. 

 

F. Conspiracy Under Color of Law / Official Oppression 

Statutes Violated: 18 U.S.C. §§ 241, 242; T.C.A. § 39-16-403 

Conduct: Coordinated use of false statements and unlawful prosecutions to silence 

Plaintiff and conceal misconduct. 



Evidence of Pattern: Repeated denial of public-records requests (Exhibits QQQQ & RR); 

refusal of service by DA Dunn and ADA Kear; misuse of judicial authority to uphold 

fraudulent orders. 

Legal Authority: Acting under color of law to deprive constitutional rights is a felony under 

18 U.S.C. §§ 241–242 and a state offense of official oppression. 

 

G. Ongoing Harm 

• Financial: Continued theft of federal dependent benefits. 

• Constitutional: Denial of parental access and due process under the 1st, 5th, and 

14th Amendments. 

• Psychological: Manipulation and alienation of minor children through isolation and 

counselor control. 

 

Conclusion 

These acts form a consistent pattern of fraud, obstruction, and retaliation carried out with 

assistance or acquiescence of local officials, establishing a continuing violation of 

Plaintiff’s constitutional and statutory rights. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregoing is 
true and correct. 
 
Executed on: September 27, 2025 
 

_Jermy Black   

Jeremy Black 
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